
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 18, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 
Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Bridgetown at the Plantation Amenity Center - Barbados Room 
11741 Kingsbridge Boulevard 

Fort Myers, Florida 33913 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 18, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. June 20, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…...…………………………………......Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Further Discussion Regarding Signage for the Flow Way 

H. New Business 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials………………………………………………………………………………………Page 7 

b. Meeting Schedule 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer Report 

a. Consider Approval of Proposal for Repair of Lake Bank Erosion Behind Number 13 Green..Page 9 

4. Field Inspectors Report 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



�����������	�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" #�#

$%&'())*+(,-&�.,/%'(&012345678�49�:67�;7<5=0>755�?9�@13A�BC�DEDDFGHIJKGLM77�N?19OAC�P3?>48QRGJKHS�TSUJ;V:WNX�VP�YXX:W;Z�[\]V\̂ VV_�NVYY ;̀W:a�_XbXMV0YX;:�_Wc:\WN:�:67�]?Q>8�?d�c1e7>f45?>5�gO67�h]?Q>8hi�?d�O67[>2?><??8�N?jj194OA�_7f73?ej79O�_45O>4kO�gO67�h_45O>4kOhi�<433�6?38�Q�]?Q>8�Y77O49l�?9�@13A�mBC�DEDDC�QO�noEE�Qpjp�49�O67]>48l7O?<9�QO�O67�03Q9OQO4?9�[j794OA�N79O7>�]Q>2Q8?5�\??j�3?kQO78�QO�mmqrm�s49l52>48l7�]?137fQ>8C�P?>O�YA7>5C�P3?>48Qttnmtp�:67�]?Q>8�Y77O49l�45�?e79�O?�O67�e1234k�Q98�<433�27�k?981kO78�49�Qkk?>8Q9k7�<4O6�O67�e>?f454?95�?d�P3?>48Q�3Q<�d?>k?jj194OA�87f73?ej79O�845O>4kO5p�:67�j77O49l�jQA�27�k?9O49178�49�e>?l>755�<4O6?1O�Q884O4?9Q3�9?O4k7�O?�Q�O4j7C�8QO7C�Q983?kQO4?9�5OQO78�?9�O67�>7k?>8p�[�k?eA�?d�O67�Ql798Q�d?>�O67�j77O49l�jQA�27�?2OQ4978�d>?j�O67�_45O>4kOu5�<7254O7�?>�2Ak?9OQkO49l�O67�_45O>4kO�YQ9Ql7>C�ce7k4Q3�_45O>4kO�c7>f4k75C�3?kQO78�QO�Dqrnn�\4f7>f47<�N79O7>�]3f8pC�vDwtC�]?94OQ�ce>49l5CP3?>48Q�trmtrp�:67>7�jQA�27�?kkQ54?95�<679�?97�?>�j?>7�c1e7>f45?>5�<433�eQ>O4k4eQO7�2A�O737e6?97p�01>51Q9O�O?�e>?f454?95?d�O67�[j7>4kQ95�<4O6�_45Q2434O475�[kOC�Q9A�e7>5?9�>7x14>49l�5e7k4Q3�Qkk?jj?8QO4?95�O?�eQ>O4k4eQO7�49�O645�]?Q>8�Y77O49l�45Q5y78�O?�Q8f457�O67�_45O>4kO�Vdd4k7�QO�37Q5O�d?>OA=74l6O�grBi�6?1>5�27d?>7�O67�j77O49l�2A�k?9OQkO49l�O67�_45O>4kO�YQ9Ql7>�QOgDtni�rrr=wqnEp�Wd�A?1�Q>7�67Q>49l�?>�5e77k6�4jeQ4>78C�e37Q57�k?9OQkO�O67�P3?>48Q�\73QA�c7>f4k7�QO�m�gBEEi�nww=BqqEC�<6?�kQ9Q48�A?1�49�k?9OQkO49l�O67�_45O>4kO�Vdd4k7p�[�e7>5?9�<6?�87k4875�O?�Qee7Q3�Q9A�87k454?9�jQ87�QO�O67�j77O49l�<4O6�>75e7kO�O?Q9A�jQOO7>�k?95487>78�QO�O67�j77O49l�45�Q8f4578�O6QO�e7>5?9�<433�9778�Q�>7k?>8�?d�O67�e>?k77849l5�Q98�O6QO�Qkk?>849l3AC�O67e7>5?9�jQA�9778�O?�7951>7�O6QO�Q�f7>2QO4j�>7k?>8�?d�O67�e>?k77849l5�45�jQ87�49k31849l�O67�O75O4j?9A�Q98�7f4879k7�1e?9<64k6�O67�Qee7Q3�45�O?�27�2Q578p�Y77O49l5�jQA�27�kQ9k73378�d>?j�O4j7�O?�O4j7�<4O6?1O�Q8f7>O4578�9?O4k7p�sQO63779�Y79773A_45O>4kO�YQ9Ql7>�[>2?><??8�N?jj194OA�_7f73?ej79O�_45O>4kO�<<<pQ>2?><??8k88p?>l�[8vwtDtmEq�@13A�BC�DEDD

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 20, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Barbados Room Bridgetown at the Plantation Amenity Center 
located at 11741 Kingsbridge Boulevard, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on April 8, 2022, as part of the Revised Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as legally 
required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Gary Franz Present 
Vice Chairman Joan Pattison Present 
Supervisor Jack Aycock Present 
Supervisor  Vacant 
Supervisor Jeff Gordish Present 

 
Staff members in virtual attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Kutak Rock, LLC 
District Engineer Josh Evans JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Others present were: Michael Fasy, the Golf Course Manager, Michael McElligott of Special District Services, 
Inc. (via phone); and the following District residents:  Jerry Strohmenger, Jim DeStephano and Ray Holter. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Franz asked to move the Golf Course item to earlier in the meeting. 
 
Mr. Aycock asked for the addition of a discussion on the signage in the flow way under Board Member 
Comments. 
 
Ms. Meneely asked to start the meeting with Consider Acceptance of Resignation of Lawrence Carr and to 
talk about the process to be used. 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

There was a consensus of the Board for all three of the above indicated items. 
 
Ms. Meneely indicated that Lawrence Carr had resigned. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gordish, seconded by Mrs. Pattison and passed unanimously accepting Mr. Carr’s 
resignation. 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that Mr. Franz had not sought to qualify for his seat, which is expiring in November, so 
there will be a second vacancy at that time.  Discussion ensued regarding seeking resumes with Mr. Franz 
pointing out that the preference in Board Members should be individuals from Bridgetown or the other 
communities, as Somerset is currently well represented on the Board.  There was a consensus of the Board 
directing Ms. Meneely to send an announcement to the HOA managers for consideration of candidates to take 
place at the August meeting. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Strohmenger asked about maintenance of the flow way west of Treeline.  Mr. Gordish indicated that the 
entire flow way needed to be cleaned out.  Mr. Evans advised that it gets sprayed once a year and that Mr. 
Strohmenger was referring to west of Treeline on the south end of the community.  Mr. Strohmenger opined 
that the water was not flowing the way it should be.  Mr. Evans stated that there was a control structure going 
under I-75 and the area looked like it was supposed to look.  He reminded the Board that water flows through 
plants, which are beneficial to the water quality and added that FDOT was responsible for the area under I-75.  
Mr. Evans furthered that nothing was blocking the flow, but it should be surveyed every 5-10 years. 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Gordish, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously 
directing Mr. Evans to obtain a proposal for surveying 7-10 cross sections of the north bypass flow way in 
basin 8. 
 
Discussion then ensued regarding lily pads and Mr. Evans advised that he would verify that they were not 
invasive. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The April 18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration.   
 
Mr. Franz noted under the discussion regarding the bench on CDD property, the minutes were missing the 
second by Mr. Carr and that the motion carried 3-2 with Mr. Gordish, not Mr. Carr, dissenting.   
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously approving the April 
18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as amended. 
 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Fort Myers 
News-Press on May 31, 2022, and June 7, 2022, as legally required.  

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2022-02, was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-02 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE 
ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2022, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; 
AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2022-02, as presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Assessment Roll 
 
Resolution No. 2022-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A DETERMINATION OF 
BENEFIT AND IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2022/2023; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PENALTIES AND 
INTEREST THEREON; CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Gordish questioned the assessment roll regarding Units H-1 and H-2, which were assessed as commercial, 
but are being built as apartments and condominiums.  Mr. McElligott stated that apartments were still 
considered commercial and assessed as one parcel.  Mr. Haber stated that the methodology would need to be 
looked at if the condominiums were to be assessed per unit, as it may be a situation similar to the cell tower.  
Mr. Franz suggested, and it was consensus of the Board, to research what the District is allowed to do by law 
for recalculation for the next year’s budget. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Aycock, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-03, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2022-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR 
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING THE TIME 
AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
no. 2022-04, as presented. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 a. Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that the next meetings were scheduled for July 18, 20222, and August 15, 2022. 
 
 b. Update on FPL Streetlight Classification 
 
Ms. Meneely reported that Shamy had spoken with FPL and the representative was still awaiting responses 
from other departments. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 a. Update on Alvarez Partial Release of Easement Agreement 
 
Mr. Haber stated that the agreement had been prepared and approved by Alvarez.  Ms. Meneely indicated she 
would bring it to the next meeting for Mr. Franz to sign and be notarized. 
 
 3.  Engineer’s Report 
  a. Update on Plantation Golf and Country Club Request for Repair of Lake Bank Erosion 
behind Green Number 13 
 
Mr. Franz introduced Mike Fasy as the new Golf Course Superintendent.  Mr. Evans advised that he had gone 
out and looked at the area and indicated that it is even erosion with no abnormalities.  He added that the District 
would it fix with soil, but that the golf course would like sod.  Mr. Fasy expressed his concern that it could 
erode close to the green, so he obtained a proposal to fix it with a sock.  Mr. Evans stated he would like to get 
another quote and Mr. Franz added that the CDD could participate in its normal procedure, but any other fixes 
above what is normal should be at the expense of the golf course.  There was a consensus of the Board directing 
Mr. Evans to obtain quotes and bring those to the next meeting. 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Mr. Evans stated that the GIS info that needed correcting had been incorporated into the program. 
 
Regarding the baffle for Botanica Lakes, Mr. Evans stated the design was being discussed back and forth and 
should be finished soon. 
 
 4.  Field Inspector’s Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak advised that the lake levels were back up.  Regarding the property on Sussex where spraying had 
taken place in the back, he stated that the spike rush had come back and there was no longer an issue.  Ms. 
Meneely added that a letter was sent to the homeowner on the issue. 
 
Mr. Gordish brought up trash bags in the preserve off of Plantation Gardens. Mr. Evans stated that the golf 
course had equipment and he will talk to Mr. Fasy about helping the District with removing the garbage. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 1.  Signage on Flow Way (Mr. Aycock’s addition) 
 
Mr. Aycock showed a picture of the current sign and thought that the words “No Fishing” should be added.  
Mr. Franz asked if there was a liability for fishing and Mr. Haber indicated, due to there being no rule against 
it, if someone gets sick or injured fishing, the District could be named, but it has strong protection with 
sovereign immunity.   
 
Mr. Aycock asked if lily pads were invasive to which Mr. Hirniak responded, in his opinion, they are native 
and do not impact the water quality.   
 
Mr. Gordish noted there were four streetlights out on Treeline.  Ms. Meneely indicated she would let the 
maintenance contractor know. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by 
Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 10:51 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11


	Arborwood Community Development District - July 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 20, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Financials
	Consider Approval of Proposal for Repair of Lake Bank Erosion Behind Number 13 Green




